
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
 

 
Governance Services 
0113 37 88664 

 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

 
Meeting to be held REMOTELY on 

Tuesday, 24th November, 2020 at 12.00 pm 
 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
J Blake (Chair) 
R Charlwood 
D Coupar 
J Lewis 
L Mulherin 
J Pryor 
M Rafique 
F Venner 
 
 
 

A Carter S Golton  

Note to observers of the meeting:    To remotely observe this meeting, 
please click on the ‘View the Meeting Recording’ link which will feature on the 
meeting’s webpage (linked below) ahead of the meeting. The webcast will 
become available at the commencement of the meeting. 
 
https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=102&MId=10231 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Public Document Pack

https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=102&MId=10231


B 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT ITEMS 
 

The reason for confidentiality or exemption is stated on the agenda and on each of the reports in 
terms of Access to Information Procedure Rules 9.2 or 10.4(1) to (7). The number or numbers 
stated in the agenda and reports correspond to the reasons for exemption / confidentiality below: 
 
9.0  Confidential information – requirement to exclude public access 
9.1 The public must be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature of 

the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that confidential 
information would be disclosed. Likewise, public access to reports, background papers, 
and minutes will also be excluded. 

 

9.2 Confidential information means 
(a)  information given to the Council by a Government Department on terms which 

forbid its public disclosure or  
(b)  information the disclosure of which to the public is prohibited by or under another 

Act or by Court Order. Generally personal information which identifies an 
individual, must not be disclosed under the data protection and human rights 
rules.  

 

10.0 Exempt information – discretion to exclude public access 
10. 1 The public may be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature of 

the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that exempt information 
would be disclosed provided: 
(a) the meeting resolves so to exclude the public, and that resolution identifies the 

proceedings or part of the proceedings to which it applies, and 
(b) that resolution states by reference to the descriptions in Schedule 12A to the 

Local Government Act 1972 (paragraph 10.4 below) the description of the 
exempt information giving rise to the exclusion of the public. 

(c) that resolution states, by reference to reasons given in a relevant report or 
otherwise, in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.  

 

10.2 In these circumstances, public access to reports, background papers and minutes will 
also be excluded.  

 
10.3 Where the meeting will determine any person’s civil rights or obligations, or adversely 

affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 establishes a 
presumption that the meeting will be held in public unless a private hearing is necessary 
for one of the reasons specified in Article 6. 

 
10. 4 Exempt information means information falling within the following categories (subject to 

any condition): 
1 Information relating to any individual 
2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
3  Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 

(including the authority holding that information). 
4 Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 

consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising 
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or officer-
holders under the authority. 

5 Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 
maintained in legal proceedings. 

6 Information which reveals that the authority proposes – 
(a)  to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which 

requirements are imposed on a person; or 
(b)  to make an order or direction under any enactment 

7 Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime 

 
 



3 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded) 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting) 
 

 

2   
 

  

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which officers 

have identified as containing exempt information 
within the meaning of Section 100I of the Local 
Government Act 1972, and where officers 
consider that the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the officers 

recommendation in respect of the above 
information. 

 
3 If the recommendation is accepted, to formally 

pass the following resolution:- 
 

RESOLVED –  That, in accordance with 
Regulation 4 of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the 
public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of those parts of the agenda 
designated as exempt  on the grounds that it is 
likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that 
if members of the press and public were present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information. 

 
 
 

 



Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

 

D 
 

3   
 

  

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes) 
 

 

4   
 

  

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

   INCLUSIVE GROWTH AND CULTURE 
 
 

 

5   
 

K 

  DEVOLUTION DEAL FOR WEST YORKSHIRE - 
CONSENT TO DRAFT ORDER 
 
To consider the report of the Chief Executive which 
seeks the Executive Board’s consideration and 
consent to the Order required to establish a 
mayoral combined authority for West Yorkshire.  
 
An initial covering report is provided to the Board 
which presents an update regarding the next stage 
of the process to implement the West Yorkshire 
Devolution Deal, as agreed between the region 
and Government in March 2020. 

The substantive report and appendices on such 
matters will follow at the earliest opportunity.  

 
 

7 - 12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

 

E 
 

 
 
Third Party Recording  
 
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not present to see or hear the proceedings 
either as they take place (or later) and to enable the reporting of those proceedings.  A copy of the 
recording protocol is available from the contacts named on the front of this agenda. 
 
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of practice 
 

a) Any published recording should be accompanied by a statement of when and where the 
recording was made, the context of the discussion that took place, and a clear identification 
of the main speakers and their role or title. 

b) Those making recordings must not edit the recording in a way that could lead to 
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the proceedings or comments made by 
attendees.  In particular there should be no internal editing of published extracts; 
recordings may start at any point and end at any point but the material between those 
points must be complete. 
 

Webcasting 
 
Please note – the publically accessible parts of this meeting will be filmed for live or subsequent 
broadcast via the City Council’s website. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is to be filmed. 



This page is intentionally left blank



Report author: Mike Eakins 

Tel: 0113 37 88646 

Report of Chief Executive 

Report to Executive Board 

Date: 24 November 2020 

Subject: Devolution Deal for West Yorkshire - Consent to Draft Order 

Are specific electoral wards affected?   Yes  No 

If yes, name(s) of ward(s):  

Has consultation been carried out?   Yes  No 

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?  

 Yes  No 

Will the decision be open for call-in?   Yes  No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes  No 

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:  

Appendix number:  

 
Summary  

1. Main issues 

 This holding paper provide Executive Board with an overview of the decisions it will 
be asked to take as part of the West Yorkshire devolution deal implementation 
process when it meets on 24 November.   

 Unfortunately, due to delays that are out of the council’s control the substantive 
report covering these issues will follow at a later date, prior to the meeting.  

2. Best Council Plan implications  

 If adopted the West Yorkshire devolution deal will play a central role in enhancing 
the council’s ability to respond, working in partnership with others, to the three key 
pillars which underpin the Best Council Plan – inclusive growth, health and 
wellbeing, and climate emergency.  

 Enacting the Deal in full will also provide the region with additional levers as part of 
efforts to achieve an inclusive economic recovery following the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

3. Resource implications 

 The Deal contains significant levels of new funding for West Yorkshire, including a 
£38m per year, 30 year gainshare agreement. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Recommendations 

Executive Board is asked: 

a) To note this brief update and to consider the substantive report on these issues 
when it is received.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



1. Purpose of this report 

1.1 This holding report provides Executive Board with an update on the next stage of 
the process to implement the West Yorkshire Devolution Deal, agreed between the 
region and Government in March 2020. 

1.2 Due to delays which are out of the council’s control, a complete substantive report 
on these issues cannot be published alongside the meeting agenda but will follow 
imminently.  

2. Background information 

2.1 The West Yorkshire ‘minded-to’ Devolution Deal was announced as part of the 
Budget on 11 March 2020. Subject to statutory processes, this will lead ultimately to 
the adoption of a mayoral combined authority (MCA) model with additional 
functions, and will require an Order of the Secretary of State.   

2.2 Following the Budget announcement, in March 2020 (relevant report and decisions 
available here), each of the five West Yorkshire councils and the West Yorkshire 
Combined Authority (WYCA): 

 Endorsed the ‘minded-to’ Deal. 

 Agreed to be party to a Review of the combined authority’s constitutional 
arrangements and of the functions carried out by the combined authority. 

  Authorised the combined authority’s Managing Director, in consultation with 
the five council Chief Executives, to prepare a draft Scheme for consideration 
by councils and the combined authority, subject to the outcome of the 
Review. 

2.3 In May 2020 (report available here), the combined authority and each constituent 
council: 

 Endorsed the conclusions of the Governance Review. 

 Considered and endorsed the Scheme for the establishment of the mayoral 
combined authority. 

 Agreed that a public consultation exercise should be undertaken on the 
proposals contained in the scheme.  

2.4 In September 2020 (report available here), the combined authority and each 
constituent council: 

 Considered the outcome of the public consultation on the Scheme, which has 
been undertaken jointly by constituent councils and the combined authority. 

 Resolved to submit the summary of the consultation responses to the 
Secretary of State.  

3. Main issues 

3.1 Following the decisions of Executive board outlined above, the next stage in the 
process for enacting the deal requires the combined authority and each constituent 
council to provide their consent to the Order required to establish a mayoral 
combined authority for West Yorkshire.  

Page 9

https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=50775
https://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=50775
http://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=102&MId=9969&Ver=4
http://democracy.leeds.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=102&MId=9976&Ver=4


3.2 Executive Board will be asked to provide Leeds City Council’s consent when it 
meets on 24 November.  

3.3 Unfortunately, there has been a delay in publishing the full paper detailing this 
recommendation and associated information due to a delay in receipt of the 
necessary version of the draft Order from Government. This delay is outside the 
control of the combined authority or constituent councils.  

3.4 Once the draft Order is received, it will be reviewed to ensure it reflects the ‘minded 
to’ devolution deal and Scheme, and includes the expected functions and 
supporting legislation. The substantive report will then be published. 

4. Corporate considerations 

4.1 Consultation and engagement 

4.1.1 As part of the statutory process public consultation has been undertaken, the 
results of which have been previously considered by Executive Board.  

4.2 Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration 

4.2.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken for implementation of the 
deal. The assessment has taken account of the obligations under Section 149 of 
the Equality Act 2010 (i.e. the public sector equality duty). It is not expected that the 
proposals described in this report will have any adverse impacts on people with 
protected characteristics. The combined authority will ensure that the equality 
impact assessments are reviewed throughout the devolution implementation 
process. 

4.3 Council policies and the Best Council Plan 

4.3.1 Securing a devolution deal for Leeds and the wider region has been a significant 
priority for the local authority for a number of years, as set out in the current and 
previous versions of the Best Council Plan.  

4.3.2 Once implemented the powers, funding and freedoms to be devolved from 
Government to the region, as part of the deal that has been agreed, will enhance 
the council’s ability to meet many of its Best Council Plan objectives, including the 
strong economy, compassionate city vision. 

4.3.3 Devolution continues to be a highly complex and dynamic policy agenda with a 
number of potential short, medium and long term implications for citizens, 
communities and businesses in Leeds. We will continue to work through these over 
the coming weeks and months in advance of the first mayoral election scheduled to 
take place in May 2021, pending Executive Board’s decisions.  

Climate Emergency 

4.3.4 As part of the ‘minded to’ Devolution Deal text, the Government welcomed West 
Yorkshire’s commitment to becoming a net zero carbon economy by 2038, with 
significant progress by 2030. Locally, the council remains committed to achieving 
net zero carbon emissions by 2030, as set out in the March 2019 climate 
emergency declaration.  

Page 10



4.3.5 There are, however, no immediate climate emergency implications arising as a 
direct result of this report.  

4.4 Resources, procurement and value for money 

4.4.1 The ‘minded to’ Devolution Deal includes a number of flagship funding 
arrangements including £38m for 30 years into the West Yorkshire Investment 
Fund, £317m from the Transforming Cities Fund and control over the £63m annual 
Adult Education budget. The implications of these and the other funding provisions 
contained within the ‘minded to’ Deal will be subject to future reports.  

4.4.2 There are no staffing implications arising directly from this report. The establishment 
of the mayoral combined authority will have staffing implications, primarily for 
WYCA, in terms of additional resources to deliver the ambition of the Deal and 
these will be considered separately as required. There remains a possibility that at 
a later stage there may be some limited staffing implications for the council. 

4.4.3 Discussions between councils and the combined authority regarding future 
partnership arrangements and ways of working are ongoing, and any future 
changes would be subject to discussion and engagement with elected members in 
the normal way.  

4.5 Legal implications, access to information, and call-in 

4.5.1 S101(5) Local Government Act 1972 provides that two or more local authorities 
(defined to include a Combined Authority) may discharge any of their functions 
jointly and may arrange for the discharge of those functions by an officer of one of 
the authorities.  

4.6 Risk management 

4.6.1 The council maintains a risk regarding devolution on the corporate risk register. This 
takes account of the need to secure a good deal and the opportunities this presents 
for the city. The risk ensures that any deal to be considered is in the best interests 
of the people of Leeds. 

4.6.2 This risk will remain under review as the deal implementation process moves 
forward to provide assurance that any new or emerging opportunities are effectively 
assessed and acted upon. 

5. Conclusions 

5.1 A full substantive paper recommending Executive Board provide the council’s 
consent to the draft Order to establish a mayoral combined authority will be 
published imminently, once the matters in 3.4 have been resolved.  

6. Recommendations 

6.1 Executive Board is asked: 

a) To note this brief update and to consider the substantive report on these 
issues when it is received.  

Page 11



7. Background documents1  

7.1 None. 

8. Additional information 

8.1 The ‘minded to’ West Yorkshire Devolution Deal (the Deal) referenced in this report 
is available here. 

                                            
1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they 
contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include published works. 

Page 12

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/872465/West_Yorkshire_Devolution_Deal.pdf

	Agenda
	5 Devolution Deal for West Yorkshire - Consent to Draft Order

